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Michelle van Straalen

From: Michelle van Straalen
Sent: Friday, 14 February 2020 12:10
To:
Cc: official information
Subject:  LGOIMA 20011 - Hamilton City Council’s stream work undertaken within Sanford Park.
Attachments: MSCG Letter to HCC re Sandford stream works 21Jan2020.pdf

Dear   
 
Further to your information request of 21 January 2020 in respect Hamilton City Council’s stream work undertaken
within Sandford Park in 2019, I am now able to provide Hamilton City Council’s response. 
 
You requested: 
 
What were the specific objectives of the work undertaken?  
Please provide a copy of the specific RMA rule, consent or permitted activity applicable which legally authorise this 
work. 
What measures were taken to avoid or mitigate ecological damage to this stream?  
What best practice measures were implemented to reduce effects and sediment input downstream?  
What monitoring of work was carried out during the works?  
What actions have been/will be taken to remedy the damage caused? 
Who in the council approved this work and what is the total budget/cost of this work? 
 
Our response: 
 
1. What were the specific objectives of the work undertaken?  
 

 Construction of erosion protection in the stream ahead of planned extensive riparian 
planting/ecological enhancement along this tributary. 

 
2. Please provide a copy of the specific RMA rule, consent or permitted activity applicable which legally authorise 

this work. 
 

Waikato Regional Plan rules (appended): 
 

 4.2.15.1 Permitted Activity Rule – Erosion Control Structures. 

 4.2.20.2 Permitted Activity Rule – Removal or Demolition of Structures. 
 

Both reports are attached below for your reference.  
 
3. What measures were taken to avoid or mitigate ecological damage to this stream?  
 

 Works were undertaken during the summer period to minimise sediment release during stream works.

 Potential bat habitat trees were left untouched and standing. 

 Retention of native plant species on stream banks where possible. 

 Interim stabilisation of disturbed ground using coconut mat and geotextile. 

 Riparian planting scheduled to be completed prior to 30 June 2020. 

 Contractor’s plant pre‐checked for fuel or oil leaks. 

 No refuelling of plant near stream. 

 Oil spill kit kept on site during work hours. 
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4. What best practice measures were implemented to reduce effects and sediment input downstream?  
 

 Fallen trees in the stream were cut and lifted from the stream channel, not uprooted or dragged out. 

 Hand placement of rock protection where possible on‐stream banks to minimise soil disturbance. 

 Interim stabilisation of disturbed ground using coconut mat and geotextile. 
 

5. What monitoring of work was carried out during the works?  
 

 Our contractor, Morphum Environmental Ltd, was engaged to provide technical oversight and 
monitoring of works during December 2019. The consultant visited the site on 2, 9, 11, 12 December 
2019 during construction.  

 A Hamilton City Council’s project engineer supervised completion of erosion protection works 
commencing 1 February 2020. 

 
6. What actions have been/will be taken to remedy the damage caused?  
 

 Erosion protection works, including bank protection and riffles now completed. 

 Stabilisation of areas of disturbed ground completed. 

 Consider practical and appropriate options for enhancement of native fish habitat. 

 Continuing pest plant control and proposed stream bank planting with appropriate native species.  

 Planting of permanently wet disturbed areas to be done following completion of stream works.  

 Remaining planting to be undertaken during Autumn 2020. 
 
7. Who in the council approved this work and what is the total budget/cost of this work?  
 

 Design was finalised in consultation with subject matter experts and Waikato Regional Council staff. The 
scope of contract works was approved by a City Waters Asset Engineer and Contracts and Procurement 
Senior Contracts Engineer. 

 The work is part of Hamilton City Council’s approved stormwater network improvement programme as 
funded in the 2018‐2028 Long Term Plan. 

 The project is funded from the 2019/20 Mangakotukutuku catchment erosion protection budget 
$884,850. 

 This contract estimated cost of works is $125,000. 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any queries regarding your response. 
 
Kind regards, 
 

Michelle van Straalen 
Official Information Advisor | Legal Services  
 
DDI: 07 974 0589 | Michelle.vanStraalen@hcc.govt.nz  

 

Hamilton City Council | Private Bag 3010 | Hamilton 3240 | www.hamilton.govt.nz 

Like us on Facebook  Follow us on Twitter  

This email and any attachments are strictly confidential and may contain privileged information. If you are not the intended recipient please 
delete the message and notify the sender. You should not read, copy, use, change, alter, disclose or deal in any manner whatsoever with this 
email or its attachments without written authorisation from the originating sender. Hamilton City Council does not accept any liability 
whatsoever in connection with this email and any attachments including in connection with computer viruses, data corruption, delay, 
interruption, unauthorised access or unauthorised amendment. Unless expressly stated to the contrary the content of this email, or any 
attachment, shall not be considered as creating any binding legal obligation upon Hamilton City Council. Any views expressed in this message 
are those of the individual sender and may not necessarily reflect the views of Hamilton City Council.  

 

Attachment referred to in the body of the response 
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4.2.15.1 Permitted Activity Rule – Erosion Control Structures 

Unless controlled by Rule 4.2.5.1 the use, erection, reconstruction, placement, alteration or extension of a: 
1. revetment or erosion control structure, and 
2. associated bed disturbance, and 
3. necessary deposition of construction material, and 
4. any discharge of sediment associated with construction activities in, on or over the bed of a lake or river, for 

the purposes of erosion control are permitted activities subject to the following conditions: 
 
a. The structure and the floodway in the immediate vicinity of the structure shall be maintained clear of debris.
b. The structure shall not decrease the cross‐sectional area of the river. 
c. For any stretch of river or lake bank measuring up to one bank kilometre in length, the combined length or 

erosion control structures shall not exceed 50 metres in length. 
d. The structure shall not be constructed of, or contain, vehicle bodies or demolition rubble other than clean 

concrete, placed such that there is no visible steel in the finished work. 
e. The construction works shall comply with the suspended solids discharge standards as set out in Section 

4.2.21. 
f. All construction materials and equipment shall be removed from the river or lake bed and the floodplain on 

the completion of that activity. 
g. No contaminants (including, but not limited to, oil, hydraulic fluids, petrol, diesel, other fuels, paint or 

solvents, but excluding sediment) shall be discharged to water from the activity. 
h. Where the weight of the structure is insufficient to keep it in place it shall be anchored to the bed and bank 

of the river. 
i. The structure shall be maintained in a structurally sound condition at all times. 
j. The owner of the structure shall inform the Waikato Regional Council in writing of the location of the 

structure at least 10 works days prior to work commencing. 
k. The structure shall not be located in a water body identified as a Natural State water body in the Water 

Management Class Maps. 
l. The activity shall not disturb any archaeological site or waahi tapu as identified at the date of notification of 

this Plan, in any district plan, in the NZ Archaeological Association’s Site Recording Scheme, or by the 
Historic Places Trust except where Historic Places Trust approval has been obtained. 

m. In the event of any waahi tapu that is not subject to condition l) being identified by the Waikato Regional 
Council to the person undertaking the use, erection, reconstruction, placement, extension or alteration, the 
activity shall cease insofar as it may affect the waahi tapu. The activity shall not be recommenced without 
the approval of the Waikato Regional Council. 

n. Any erosion occurring as a result of the structure shall be remedied as soon as practicable. 
o. This rule shall not apply to activities located in, on, under or over the bed of a river or lake that is a 

Significant Geothermal Feature. 
p. The structure shall provide for the safe passage of fish both upstream and downstream. 
q. The structure shall be constructed against the eroding stream or lake bank and be physically attached to it. 
 

Advisory Note: 
 Where a waahi tapu site is identified whilst undertaking the activity, the process that Waikato Regional 

Council will follow in order to implement condition m) is set out in Section 2.3.4.22 of this Plan. 
 Where a structure or activity is to be located in, on, under or over the bed of a water body that is Significant 

Geothermal Feature, Rules 7.6.6.1 to 7.6.6.3 shall apply. Significant Geothermal Features are defined in the 
Glossary, and in Development and Limited Development Geothermal Systems, identified on maps in Section 
7.10 of this Plan. 
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